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UMH PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF MARCH 31, 2018 AND DECEMBER 31, 2017

March 31, December 31,
2018 2017
(Unaudited)
- ASSETS -
Investment Property and Equipment
Land $61,239,644 $61,239,644
Site and Land Improvements 465,133,352 463,242,075
Buildings and Improvements 23,027,199 22,963,926
Rental Homes and Accessories 224,242,140 216,992,988
Total Investment Property 773,642,335 764,438,633
Equipment and Vehicles 17,437,910 16,874,760
Total Investment Property and Equipment 791,080,245 781,313,393

Accumulated Depreciation (173,889,571) (166,444,512)
Net Investment Property and Equipment 617,190,674 614,868,881
Other Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 25,951,970 23,242,090
Marketable Securities at Fair Value 113,343,772 132,964,276
Inventory of Manufactured Homes 18,981,697 17,569,365
Notes and Other Receivables, net 25,809,308 25,451,053
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 4,499,430 3,457,083
Land Development Costs 7,610,268 6,328,578
Total Other Assets 196,196,445 209,012,445

TOTAL ASSETS

$813,387,119  $823,881,326

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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UMH PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS - CONTINUED

AS OF MARCH 31, 2018 AND DECEMBER 31, 2017

March 31, December 31,

2018 2017
(Unaudited)
- LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY -
LIABILITIES:
Mortgages Payable, net of unamortized debt issuance costs $303,317,181 $304,895,117
Other Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 3,119,246 2,960,739
Loans Payable, net of unamortized debt issuance costs 50,382,537 84,704,487
Accrued Liabilities and Deposits 4,772,792 4,977,886
Tenant Security Deposits 5,246,796 5,127,633
Total Other Liabilities 63,521,371 97,770,745
Total Liabilities 366,838,552 402,665,862

Commitments and Contingencies

Shareholders’ Equity:

Series B — 8.0% Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock,
par value $0.10 per share; 4,000,000 shares authorized; 3,801,200 shares issued and 95,030,000 95,030,000
outstanding as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017

Series C — 6.75% Cumulative Redeemable Preferred

Stock, par value $0.10 per share, 5,750,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding 143,750,000 143,750,000
as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017

Series D — 6.375% Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, par value $0.10 per share,

2,300,000 shares authorized; 2,000,000 and -0- shares issued and outstanding as of 50,000,000 -0-

March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively

Common Stock - $0.10 par value per share; 111,363,800 and 113,663,800 shares

authorized; 36,311,144 and 35,488,068 shares issued and outstanding as of March 31, 3,631,114 3,548,807
2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively

Excess Stock - $0.10 par value per share; 3,000,000 shares authorized; no shares

issued or outstanding as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 -0- -0-
Additional Paid-In Capital 154,805,246 168,034,868
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income -0- 11,519,582
Accumulated Deficit (667,793 ) (667,793 )
Total Shareholders’ Equity 446,548,567 421,215,464
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $813,387,119 $823,881,326
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See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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UMH PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS) (UNAUDITED)

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED

MARCH 31, 2018 AND 2017

INCOME:

Rental and Related Income
Sales of Manufactured Homes
Total Income

EXPENSES:

Community Operating Expenses

Cost of Sales of Manufactured Homes
Selling Expenses

General and Administrative Expenses
Depreciation Expense

Total Expenses

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):

Interest Income

Dividend and Other Investment Income (Loss), net
Other Income

Interest Expense

Total Other Income (Expense)

Income (Loss) before Loss on Sales of Investment Property and Equipment
Loss on Sales of Investment Property and Equipment

Net Income (Loss)

Less: Preferred Dividends

Net Loss Attributable to Common

Shareholders

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

THREE MONTHS ENDED
March 31, March 31,
2018 2017
$27,270,477 $24,530,355
2,525,487 1,918,194
29,795,964 26,448,549
12,754,816 11,480,359
1,980,171 1,503,209
804,072 759,379
2,358,556 2,202,302
7,594,634 6,540,238
25,492,249 22,485,487
470,230 473,359
(23,453,572) 1,883,131
67,463 48,104
(3,580,468 ) (4,057,730)
(26,496,347) (1,653,136)
(22,192,632) 2,309,926
(15,705 ) (24,380 )
(22,208,337) 2,285,546
(4,946,173 ) (3,789,747)

$(27,154,510) $(1,504,201)
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UMH PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS) - CONTINUED (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED

MARCH 31, 2018 AND 2017

THREE MONTHS
ENDED
March 31, March 31,
2018 2017
Basic and Diluted Income (LLoss) Per Share:
Net Income (Loss) $(0.62 ) $0.08
Less: Preferred Dividends (0.14 ) (0.13 )

Net Loss Attributable to Common Shareholders ~ $(0.76 ) $(0.05 )

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding:
Basic and Diluted 35,907,090 29,954,773

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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UMH PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (UNAUDITED)

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED

MARCH 31, 2018 AND 2017

THREE MONTHS

ENDED

March 31, March 31,

2018 2017
Net Income (Loss) $(22,208,337) $2,285,546
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
Unrealized Holding Loss Arising During the Period -0- (2,015,524)
Reclassification Adjustment for Net Gains Realized in Income -0- (31,891 )
Change in Fair Value of Interest Rate Swap Agreements -0- 9,941
Comprehensive Income (Loss) (22,208,337) 248,072
Less: Preferred Dividends (4,946,173 ) (3,789,747)

Comprehensive Loss Attributable to Common Shareholders $(27,154,510) $(3,541,675)

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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UMH PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED

MARCH 31, 2018 AND 2017

THREE MONTHS ENDED
March 31, March 31,
2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Income (Loss) $(22,208,337) $2,285,546

Non-Cash items included in Net Income (Loss):

Depreciation 7,594,634 6,540,238
Amortization of Financing Costs 154,881 174,787
Stock Compensation Expense 282,062 169,377
Provision (Benefit) for Uncollectible Notes and Other Receivables (294,405 ) 218,530
Gain on Sales of Marketable Securities, net (20,107 ) (31,891 )
Decrease in Fair Value of Marketable Securities 25,898,819 -0-
Loss on Sales of Investment Property and Equipment 15,705 24,380
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Inventory of Manufactured Homes (1,412,332 ) (555,802 )
Notes and Other Receivables, net of Notes Acquired with Acquisitions (63,850 ) (46,954 )
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 270,173 1,461,008
Accounts Payable 158,507 802,082
Accrued Liabilities and Deposits (205,094 ) 218,439
Tenant Security Deposits 119,163 366,593
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 10,289,819 11,626,333
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Manufactured Home Communities -0- (36,824,379)
Purchase of Investment Property and Equipment (10,468,059) (11,846,814)
Proceeds from Sales of Investment Property and Equipment 535,927 522,436
Additions to Land Development Costs (1,281,690 ) (692,389 )
Purchase of Marketable Securities (6,526,883 ) (2,145,267 )
Proceeds from Sales of Marketable Securities 268,675 1,368,888
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (17,472,030) (49,617,525)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Mortgages -0- 14,250,000
Net (Payments) Proceeds on Short Term Borrowings (34,305,218) 23,601,802
Principal Payments of Mortgages (1,714,549 ) (1,852,336 )
Financing Costs on Debt (35,000 ) (109,868 )
Proceeds from Issuance of Preferred Stock, net of offering costs 48,247,280 -0-
9,357,099 13,772,576

11
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Proceeds from Issuance of Common Stock in the DRIP, net of Dividend
Reinvestments

Proceeds from Exercise of Stock Options

Preferred Dividends Paid

Common Dividends Paid, net of Dividend Reinvestments

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash at Beginning of Period
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH

AT END OF PERIOD

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

133,920
(4,680,547 )
(5,798,374 )
11,204,611

4,022,400
27,891,249

$31,913,649

2,231,032
(3,789,747 )
(4,735,323 )
43,368,136

5,376,944
9,349,489

$14,726,433

12
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UMH PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2018 (UNAUDITED)

NOTE 1 — ORGANIZATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

LT3 LEINT3

UMH Properties, Inc., a Maryland corporation, together with its subsidiaries (“we”, “our”, “us” or “the Company’’) operates as
a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) deriving its income primarily from real estate rental operations. The Company
owns and operates 112 manufactured home communities containing approximately 20,000 developed home sites as of
March 31, 2018. These communities are located in New Jersey, New York, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Indiana,
Michigan and Maryland. The Company, through its wholly-owned taxable subsidiary, UMH Sales and Finance, Inc.
(“S&F”), conducts manufactured home sales to residents and prospective residents in its communities. Inherent in the
operations of manufactured home communities are site vacancies. S&F was established to fill these vacancies and
enhance the value of the communities. The Company also owns a portfolio of REIT securities which the Company
generally limits to no more than approximately 20% of its undepreciated assets. The consolidated financial statements
of the Company include S&F and all of its other wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856-860 of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”), and
intends to maintain its qualification as a REIT in the future. As a qualified REIT, with limited exceptions, the

Company will not be taxed under federal and certain state income tax laws at the corporate level on taxable income

that it distributes to its shareholders. For special tax provisions applicable to REITs, refer to Sections 856-860 of the
Code. The Company is subject to franchise taxes in some of the states in which the Company owns property.

The interim Consolidated Financial Statements furnished herein have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) applicable to interim financial
information, the instructions to Form 10-Q, and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of
the information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of
management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation
have been included. Operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2018 are not necessarily indicative of the
results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2018. For further information, refer to the Consolidated
Financial Statements and footnotes thereto included in the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2017.

Use of Estimates

13
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, management is required to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as well as contingent assets and
liabilities as of the dates of the consolidated balance sheets and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting periods. Actual results could differ significantly from these estimates and assumptions.

14
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Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the financial statements for the prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the statement
presentation for the current periods.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

In the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to financial market risks, including interest rate risk on its
variable rate debt. The Company attempts to limit these risks by following established risk management policies,
procedures and strategies, including the use of derivative financial instruments. The Company's primary strategy in
entering into derivative contracts is to minimize the variability that changes in interest rates could have on its future
cash flows. The Company generally employs derivative instruments that effectively convert a portion of its variable
rate debt to fixed rate debt. The Company does not enter into derivative instruments for speculative purposes. The
Company entered into various interest rate swap agreements that have had the effect of fixing interest rates relative to
specific mortgage loans. As of March 31, 2018, these agreements have expired and the Company does not have any
interest rate swap agreements in effect.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-09, “Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of
Modification Accounting.” ASU 2017-09 clarifies which changes to the terms or conditions of a share based payment
award are subject to the guidance on modification accounting under FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic
718. Entities would apply the modification accounting guidance unless the value, vesting requirements and
classification of a share based payment award are the same immediately before and after a change to the terms or
conditions of the award. ASU No. 2017-09 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including
interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company adopted this standard effective January 1, 2018, and it did not
have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-05, “Other Income-Gains and Losses from the Derecognition of
Nonfinancial Assets.” ASU 2017-05 provides guidance for recognizing gains and losses from the transfer of
nonfinancial assets and in-substance non-financial assets in contracts with non-customers, unless other specific
guidance applies. The standard requires a company to derecognize nonfinancial assets once it transfers control of a
distinct nonfinancial asset or distinct in substance nonfinancial asset. Additionally, when a company transfers its
controlling interest in a nonfinancial asset, but retains a noncontrolling ownership interest, the company is required to
measure any non-controlling interest it receives or retains at fair value. The guidance requires companies to recognize
a full gain or loss on the transaction. As a result of the new guidance, the guidance specific to real estate sales in ASC

15
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360-20 will be eliminated. As such, sales and partial sales of real estate assets will now be subject to the same
derecognition model as all other nonfinancial assets. The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2017, including interim periods within that reporting period. The Company adopted this standard
effective January 1, 2018, and it did not have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18 “Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cash.” ASU
2016-18 requires inclusion of restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents with cash and cash equivalents when
reconciling the beginning of period and end of period total amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. The
guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within that
reporting period. The Company adopted this standard effective January 1, 2018. The Company’s restricted cash
consists of amounts primarily held in deposit for tax, insurance and repair escrows held by lenders in accordance with
certain debt agreements. Restricted cash is included in Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Changes in restricted cash are reported on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows as operating,
investing or financing activities based on the nature of the underlying activity.

The following table reconciles beginning of period and end of period balances of cash, cash equivalents and restricted
cash for the periods shown:

3/31/18 12/31/17 3/31/17 12/31/16
Cash and Cash Equivalents $25,951,970 $23,242,090 $8,306,625 $4,216,592
Restricted Cash 5,961,679 4,649,159 6,419,808 5,132,897

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash $31,913,649 $27,891,249 $14,726,433 $9,349,489

10
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In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, “Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230), Classification of Certain
Cash Receipts and Cash Payments.” ASU 2016-15 will make eight targeted changes to how cash receipts and cash
payments are presented and classified in the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-15 is effective for annual reporting
periods, including interim reporting periods within those periods, beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption
is permitted. The Company adopted this standard effective January 1, 2018, and it did not have a material impact on
our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, “Financial Instruments — Overall: Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.” ASU 2016-01 requires equity investments (except those accounted for
under the equity method of accounting, or those that result in consolidation of the investee) to be measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognized in net income, requires public business entities to use the exit price notion
when measuring the fair value of financial instruments for disclosure purposes, requires separate presentation of
financial assets and financial liabilities by measurement category and form of financial asset, and eliminates the
requirement for public business entities to disclose the method(s) and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair
value that is required to be disclosed for financial instruments measured at amortized cost. ASU 2016-01 is effective
for annual reporting periods, including interim reporting periods within those periods, beginning after December 15,
2017, and early adoption is permitted. The Company adopted this standard effective January 1, 2018. The Company
previously classified its marketable securities as available-for-sale and carried at fair value with unrealized holding
gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported as a separate component of Shareholders’ Equity until realized.
The change in the unrealized net holding gains (losses) was reflected in the Company’s Comprehensive Income (loss).
Upon adoption, these securities will continue to be measured at fair value; however, the change in the unrealized net
holding gains and losses is now recognized through net income. As of January 1, 2018, unrealized net holding gains of
$11,519,582 were reclassed to beginning retained earnings to recognize the unrealized gains previously recorded in
“accumulated other comprehensive income” on our consolidated balance sheets. For the three months ended March 31,
2018 we recorded a $25,898,819 decrease in the fair value of our marketable securities, which is included in “Dividend
and Other Investment Income (Loss), net” on our Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss).

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)” (ASC 606). The
objective of this amendment is to establish a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers and will supersede most of the existing revenue recognition guidance, including
industry-specific guidance. The core principle is that a company should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In applying this amendment, companies will perform a five-step
analysis of transactions to determine when and how revenue is recognized. This amendment applies to all contracts
with customers except those that are within the scope of other topics in the FASB ASC. An entity should apply the
amendments using either the full retrospective approach or retrospectively with a cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments recognized at the date of initial application. In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14
which deferred the effective date of ASU 2014-09 by one year to annual reporting periods beginning after December
15, 2017, including interim periods within that reporting period. The Company adopted this standard effective January
1, 2018. For transactions in the scope of ASU 2014-09, we recognize revenue when control of goods or services
transfers to the customer, in the amount that we expect to receive for the transfer of goods or provision of services.
The adoption of ASC 2014-09 did not result in any change to our accounting policies for revenue recognition.
Accordingly, retrospective application to prior periods or a cumulative catch-up adjustment was unnecessary.

17
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Our primary source of revenue is generated from lease agreements for our sites and homes. Resident leases are
generally for one-year or month-to-month terms, and are renewable by mutual agreement from us and the resident, or
in some cases, as provided by jurisdictional statute. The lease component of these agreements is accounted for under
ASC 840 “Leases.” The non-lease components of our lease agreements consist primarily of utility reimbursements, are
accounted for with the site lease as a single lease under ASC 840.

Sales of manufactured homes is recognized under ASC 605 “Revenue Recognition” since these homes are not
permanent fixtures or improvements to the underlying real estate. In accordance with the core principle of ASC 606,
we recognize revenue from home sales at the time of closing when control of the home transfers to the customer. After
closing of the sale transaction, we have no remaining performance obligation.

Interest income is primarily from notes receivables for the previous sales of manufactured homes and is not in the
scope of ASU 2014-09. These sales were recorded upon completion of our performance obligations.

Dividend and other investment income are from our investments in marketable securities and are presented separately
but are not in the scope of ASU 2014-09.

Other income is recognized under ASC 605 “Revenue Recognition” and primarily consists of brokerage commissions
for arranging for the sale of a home by a third party, service and marketing agreements with cable providers, and in
2017 include an upfront oil and gas bonus payment. This income is recognized when the transactions are completed
and our performance obligations have been fulfilled.

As of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company had notes receivable of $24,683,191 and $24,066,567,
respectively. Notes receivables are presented as a component of Notes and Other Receivables, net on our Consolidated
Balance Sheets. These receivables ions. HCPI commenced expensing its options effective January 1, 2003. The
Committee may make grants based on a number of factors, including:

the executive officer s position with HCPI,

performance of his responsibilities,

equity participation levels of comparable executives at competitive companies, and

individual contribution to the success of HCPI s financial performance.

19
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In addition, the size, frequency and type of long-term incentive grants may be determined on the basis of tax consequences of the grants to the
individual and HCPI, accounting impact and the number of shares available for issuance. In recognition of 2002 performance, each of the
executive officers received options in January 2003, which were based on his responsibilities, relative position with HCPI, competitive practices
and the committee s philosophy of leveraging compensation toward long-term incentives. In determining the size of the awards to each executive
officer, the Committee employed a valuation methodology to determine expected value of the grant, analyzed typical REIT share dilution and
considered that in 2002 HCPI had achieved its 68" consecutive quarter of increased per share dividends and significant success in acquisition
and capital raising activities. The Committee also considered the impact the options would have on the financials of the Committee given that,
effective as of January 1, 2003, the Company expenses its options. Based on the recommendation of Watson Wyatt, the Committee is currently
considering adding a performance-based vesting feature to a portion of the annual restricted stock awards to executive officers. The Committee
anticipates that restricted stock for 2002 performance will be awarded to its executive officers once it has determined the applicable performance
standards under with such restricted stock may be awarded.

Stock Ownership Program. In January 2003, the Committee adopted a stock ownership program pursuant to which each member of the HCPI
senior leadership team must own specified dollar amounts of HCPI common stock, generally based on the individual s salary. Each of the
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President is required to own HCPI common stock with a value equal to at least five times his salary.
Each of the other executive officers is required to own HCPI common stock with a value equal to at least three times his salary. All executives
must achieve their mandatory holdings within five years.

19
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(b) Chief Executive Officer Compensation

Consistent with the compensation mix of HCPI s other executive officers, the chief executive officer s compensation is composed primarily of his
base salary, annual cash incentive bonuses and long-term stock award. The Committee intends for the total direct compensation of the chief
executive officer to consist of up to 75% incentive compensation tied directly to stockholder value creation with the remainder in base salary.

Mr. Roath s base salary is targeted at the 60th percentile of chief executive compensation at comparable companies and his total direct
compensation is targeted at the upper quartile of these companies.

Mr. Roath received a base salary of $560,000 in 2002, which represents a 4.45% increase from his base salary in 2001. This increase was made

by the Committee in January 2002 in order to ensure that his base salary is at about the 50th percentile of competitive practices while

maintaining his total potential compensation leveraged toward performance based incentives. In evaluating the chief executive officer s eligibility
for performance based compensation, the Committee analyzes senior management s collective achievements of HCPI s performance goals, as
well as progress in successful roll-over of maturing leases and mortgages, the level and success of acquisition and capital raising activities, the
level of stockholder dividends, and the diversity and stability of the portfolio. Upon the recommendation of Watson Wyatt, and in recognition of
Mr. Roath s implementation of a positive succession plan, the Company s relative growth in FFO and total return to stockholders, the Committee
awarded a bonus of $750,000 to Mr. Roath for 2002. Mr. Roath received 100,000 stock option grants, a decline from 2001 awards of 300,000
options, and no restricted stock awards for the reasons discussed above.

In October 2002, the Board approved a Succession Plan presented by Mr. Roath. Pursuant to the Succession Plan, Mr. Roath resigned his
position as President in October 2002, and will cease service as HCPI s Chief Executive Officer upon the Board s appointment of James F.
Flaherty III to serve as HCPI s Chief Executive Officer, which is expected to occur at or around the date of the annual meeting. Mr. Roath is
expected to continue to serve as Chairman of the Board. Effective May 1, 2003 or the later date as of which Mr. Roath no longer serves as our
Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Roath s salary will be reduced to $350,000 for the first year and will thereafter be further reduced to $250,000 for
the second year of this arrangement. On October 8, 2002, Mr. Flaherty was appointed as HCPI s President and Chief Operating Officer with an
initial base salary of $475,000. Upon becoming appointed as Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Flaherty s base salary shall increase to $560,000 per
year. In determining the compensation payable to Mr. Flaherty as Chief Executive Officer, the Committee sought to provide Mr. Flaherty with
substantially similar compensation as provided to Mr. Roath, which is based on industry surveys concerning competitive compensation of chief
executive officer s of similarly situated companies.

Based upon the foregoing, the Committee has reviewed and approved the total compensation for 2002 of the five most highly compensated
executive officers of HCPI.

(¢c) Amendment and Restatement of the 2000 Incentive Stock Plan.

In March 2003, the Committee approved amendments to and the restatement of the HCPI 2000 Incentive Stock Plan. In part, the Committee
increased the authorized number of shares under the plan by 2,500,000 shares, believing that the additional shares are necessary to establish a
reserve of shares that would enable the grant of stock-based awards over the next three to five years. In order to retain, motivate and attract key
personnel essential to the continued success of the Company, the Committee believes it is necessary to maintain its current practice of providing
meaningful awards on an annual basis. Thus, and upon the recommendation of
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Watson Wyatt, the Committee amended the plan to permit the grant of stock performance awards. These awards would enable the Committee to
tie the number of shares awarded and/or the vesting of such shares, in whole or in part, upon the Company s achievement of certain
pre-established performance criteria. The Committee intends these awards to qualify as performance based compensation under Code Section
162(m). The Committee recommends that stockholders approved the amendment and restatement of the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan.

(d) Policy with Respect to Section 162(m)

Section 162(m) of the Code denies deduction for certain compensation in excess of $1,000,000 paid to executive officers, unless certain
performance, disclosure, stockholder approval and other requirements are met. The Committee will continue to review the effects of its
compensation programs with regard to Code Section 162(m). A substantial portion of the compensation program will be exempted from the
$1,000,000 deduction limitation. HCPI will continue to evaluate alternatives to ensure executive compensation is reasonable,
performance-based, and consistent with HCPI s overall compensation objectives. The Committee reserves the right to design programs that
recognize a full range of performance criteria important to HCPI s success, even where the compensation paid under such programs may not be
deductible.

Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Michael D. McKee (Chairman) Paul V. Colony Harold M. Messmer, Jr.
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STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The graph below compares the cumulative total return of HCPI, the S&P 500 Index, and the Healthcare Equity REIT Index of the National

Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, Inc., from January 1, 1998 to December 31, 2002. Total return assumes quarterly reinvestment of

dividends before consideration of income taxes.

COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

AMONG S&P 500, EQUITY HEALTHCARE REITS AND HCPI

HEALTH CARE PROPERTY INVESTORS, INC.

RATE OF RETURN TREND COMPARISON

JANUARY 1998 - DECEMBER 31, 2002

(JANUARY 1, 1998 = 100)

Stock Price Performance Graph

Total Return Index

Assumes $100 Invested January 1, 1998 in HCPL, S&P 500 Index and NAREIT Healthcare Equity REIT Index.
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CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

Mr. Roath, a director and officer of HCPI, has a remaining balance on a loan from HCPI of $2,023,250 with an interest rate of 3.70% due on
October 31, 2004. Mr. Fanning, a director of HCPI, has remaining balances on loans from HCPI of $107,938 with an interest rate of 5.55% due

on April 8, 2004 and $127,690 with an interest rate of 3.85% due on April 9, 2005. All of the loans were made either for the purpose of

purchasing shares upon option exercise or meeting payroll taxes due upon vesting of restricted stock grants, and such loans are secured by the
stock of HCPI. The authority for HPCI to maintain such loans was grand fathered under Section 13 of the Exchange Act, as amended by Section
402 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

The Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee makes all executive compensation decisions. Messrs. Colony, McKee
and Messmer serve as the members of the Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. No member of the Compensation,
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is a former or current executive officer or employee of the Company. None of our executive
officers served as a director or member of a compensation committee (or other committee serving an equivalent function) of any other entity,
whose executive officers served as a director or member of our Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee during the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(a) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, requires HCPI s directors and officers, and persons who own more than 10% of a registered class of HCPI s
equity securities, to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of equity securities of our common stock.
These people are required by SEC regulations to furnish HCPI with copies of all these reports they file. To HCPI s knowledge, based solely on its
review of the copies of such reports furnished to us and written representations from certain insiders that no other reports were required during
the year ended December 31, 2002, all Section 16(a) filing requirements (other than those arising under the Director Deferral Plan) applicable to
HCPI insiders were complied with, except (i) Mr. Rhein filed a late Form 4 in May 2002 with respect to two transactions, (ii) Messrs. Roath,
Henning and Ghose, filed late on Form 5 the exempt acquisition of dividend equivalent shares in November 2002 and (iii) our non-employee
directors were late in filing transactions under the Director Deferral Plan. In connection with the Company s review of the recently adopted
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Company determined that its directors were required to report exempt phantom stock and dividend equivalent
transactions under the Director Deferral Plan. As a result, each of HCPI s non-employee directors (Messrs. Colony, Fanning, McKee, Messmer
and Rhein) have filed on a late basis Forms 5 for the fiscal years ending 1997 through 2001, and one Form 4 for November 2002, reporting
exempt acquisitions of phantom stock and dividend equivalents, and as to Messrs. Rhein and Fanning, three and two, respectively, exempt
discretionary transactions, respectively, that occurred under the Director Deferral Plan.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT TO STOCKHOLDERS

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in any of HCPI s previous filings under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act that refer to
future filings for additional information, including specifically to this proxy statement, in whole or in part, the following report by the Audit
Committee and the stock performance graph above shall not be considered to be a part of any such filing.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is comprised of three independent directors and operates under a charter adopted by the Board of
Directors, as required by the rules of the New York Stock Exchange. The members of the Audit Committee are Messrs. Fanning, McKee and
Rhein.

Management of the Company is primarily responsible for the Company s financial statements, internal controls and the financial reporting
process. The independent accountants are responsible for performing an independent audit of the Company s consolidated financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and to issue a report thereon. The Audit Committee s responsibility is to monitor and
oversee these processes.

In this context, the Audit Committee has met and held discussions with management and the independent accountants. Management represented
to the Audit Committee that the Company s consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and the Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the consolidated financial statements with management and the independent
accountants. The Audit Committee discussed with the independent accountants matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 61 (Communication with Audit Committees). Additionally, the Audit Committee meets at least twice a year with the independent
accountants and the chairman of the Audit Committee holds quarterly discussions with the independent accountants and management. The Audit
Committee recently hired Deloitte and Touche LLP to assess the effectiveness of and to make recommendations regarding HCPI s internal audit
controls.

The Company s independent accountants also provided to the Audit Committee the written disclosures required by Independence Standards
Board Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussions with Audit Committees), and the Audit Committee discussed with the independent
accountants that firm s independence.

Based upon the Audit Committee s discussion with management and the independent accountants and the Audit Committee s review of the
representation of management and the report of the independent accountants to the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee recommended that
the Board of Directors include the audited consolidated financial statements in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Audit Committee

Peter L. Rhein (Chairman) Robert R. Fanning, Jr. Michael D. McKee
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AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT FEES

During May 2002, after our dismissal of Arthur Andersen LLP, the Company engaged Ernst & Young LLP as its independent public accountant
for the remaining fiscal year ending December 31, 2002. As a result, the Company paid fees to both Ernst & Young LLP and Arthur Andersen
LLP during fiscal year 2002.

Arthur Andersen. The fees paid to Arthur Andersen LLP, our former independent public accountant, during 2002 were for professional
services rendered by Arthur Andersen LLP in its review of the financial statements included in the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the first quarter of 2002, totaling $10,000. In the category of all other fees, we paid Arthur Andersen LLP approximately $68,000 for
preparing the Company and its subsidiaries state and federal taxes and approximately $36,000 for certain other advisory services. We did not
pay any fees to Arthur Andersen for financial information systems design or implementation.

Ernst & Young. The fees paid to Ernst & Young LLP, our current independent public accountant, during 2002 were as follows:

Audit Fees. The aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by Ernst & Young LLP for the audit of the Company s
annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2002 and the reviews of the financial statements included in the
Company s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the second and third quarters were $351,000.

Financial Information Systems Design and Implementation Fees. Ernst & Young LLP did not render any professional services to the
Company relating to (1) directly or indirectly operating, or supervising the operation of, the Company s information system or
managing the Company s local area network, or (2) designing and implementing hardware or software systems that aggregate data
underlying the Company s financial statements or that generate information significant to the Company s financial statements as a
whole.

All Other Fees. The aggregate fees billed for services rendered by Ernst & Young LLP, other than fees for the services referenced
under the caption Audit Fees, during the 2002 fiscal year were $277,000. Of this amount, fees paid for tax related services, including
preparation of the Company s federal taxes, were approximately $85,000, and fees paid for certain advisory services for REIT
compliance transactions, REIT related services and public debt offering services were approximately $178,000. Fees paid for
consulting services prior to HCPI s appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as its public accountants were approximately $14,000.

The Audit Committee considered whether the provision about the non-audit services described in the section All Other Fees by Ernst & Young
LLP to HCPI is compatible with maintaining the independence of Ernst & Young LLP and concluded that the independence of Ernst & Young
LLP is not compromised by the provision of such services.
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APPROVAL OF THE AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT OF THE 2000 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

(Proxy Item No. 2)

On March 23, 2000, the Board of Directors unanimously adopted, and at our 2000 Annual Meeting of Stockholders the stockholders approved,
the Health Care Property Investors, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, which provides for long-term award for employees, consultants and outside
directors of HCPI. On March 21, 2003, the Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and the Board of Directors each
unanimously approved amendments to and the restatement of the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the Amended Stock Plan ), which, in part:

increases the number of shares reserved for issuance under the plan by 2,500,000 shares; and

authorizes the grant of stock performance awards; and

increases the limit on the number of shares available for issuance as restricted stock, stock performance awards or dividend equivalents
by 500,000 shares; and

modifies the annual non-employee director award program, so that:

after the April 2003 grants, no further options will be granted to non-employee directors;

commencing with the 2004 annual meeting of stockholders, non-employee directors will be automatically awarded 1,200 shares of
restricted stock on the date of each annual meeting as of which such person continues as a non-employee director;

commencing with the 2004 annual meeting of stockholders, if HCPI s total return to stockholders for the preceding year meets or
exceeds the current performance criteria in the Amended Stock Plan, the non-employee directors will be awarded 300 shares of
restricted stock (instead of the 3,000 options that the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan currently provides) on the date of the annual
meeting; and

expands the performance criteria upon which awards may be granted as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the
Code; and

establishes the per person annual limit on cash-based awards at $1,250,000.

Stockholders are being asked to approve the amendment and the restatement of the Amended Stock Plan at the annual meeting. The Board
believes that the amendments are necessary to establish a reserve of shares that would enable the grant of stock-based awards over the next three
to five years. In order to retain, motivate and attract key personnel essential to the continued success of the Company, the Board believes it is
necessary to maintain its current practice of providing meaningful awards on an annual basis. The addition of stock performance awards is
designed to further motivate our employees to direct their efforts to the continued financial success and growth of HCPI, while aligning their
interests with the interests of our stockholders.

As of March 1, 2003, approximately 1,200,000 shares remain available for issuance under the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and only approximately
276,000 of such amount remain available for issuance as restricted stock awards and dividend equivalents. The 2000 Stock Incentive Plan
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originally provided for the issuance of approximately 3,200,000 shares (2,500,000 shares plus carryover of approximately 700,000 shares that
were previously authorized under the 1997 Directors Plan, which was terminated when the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan was approved). The 2000
Stock Incentive Plan also originally limited the number of shares which may be in the form of restricted stock awards or dividend equivalents to
500,000 shares. As of January 1, 2003, the Company expenses all option grants.
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Below is a brief description of the Amended Stock Plan. The complete text of the Amended Stock Plan is attached as Annex A to this proxy
statement. While the Amended Stock Plan is summarized herein, such summary is subject to the complete text of the Amended Stock Plan,
which will govern should there be any discrepancy or inconsistency between this summary and the Amended Stock Plan.

Summary of the Amended Stock Plan

Securities Subject to Amended Stock Plan. The Amended Stock Plan authorizes the issuance of up to 5,702,400 shares of our common stock,
resulting in approximately 3,700,000 shares available for award after the annual meeting. The Amended Stock Plan limits the number of shares
that may be issued as restricted stock, dividend equivalents and stock performance awards to 1,000,000, resulting in approximately 576,000
shares being available for such grants after the annual meeting. The Amended Stock Plan provides for appropriate adjustments in the number
and kind of shares for certain changes in HCPI s capital structure, reorganizations, consolidations or certain other types of recapitalization. If
shares subject to an incentive award expire or are cancelled without having been fully exercised, or if shares subject to an incentive award are
forfeited or repurchased by HCPI, such shares will again be available for future grant under the Amended Stock Plan. The Amended Stock Plan
provides that the number of shares of our common stock that may be issued will be increased by the number of shares of our common stock that
are delivered to us in connection with the exercise of an award and shares delivered or relinquished in payment of federal, state and local tax
withholding liabilities upon exercise of an award.

Eligibility. The Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors (the Committee ) has the authority
to grant awards to any employee, officer, non-employee director or consultant of HCPI. We currently have six non-employee directors and
approximately 50 employees that are eligible to participate in the Amended Stock Plan. The number of consultants that are eligible to participate
for the Amended Stock Plan fluctuates based upon how many consultants we hire during any given time period. Non-employee Directors are
automatically awarded restricted stock on an annual basis.

Administration. The Committee administers the Amended Stock Plan as to all participants other than non-employee Directors. The Board
administers the Amended Stock Plan as to non-employee Director participants The Committee determines the person to whom awards shall be
granted, the number of awards that may be granted in a given year to a single participant and the other terms and conditions of such awards. The
Committee is to consist solely of members who are outside directors for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Code and a non-employee director as
defined by Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act. If a member of the Committee is not a non-employee director at the time of any incentive award

grant, the grant of the incentive award shall satisfy another exemption under Rule 16b-3.

Terms of Awards. The following types of award are authorized under the Amended Stock Plan: (i) non-qualified non-statutory options to
purchase shares of common stock, (ii) restricted stock awards, (iii) dividend equivalent shares, (iv) cash based awards and (v) stock performance
awards. The Amended Stock Plan limits the number of shares that may be awarded to any one person during any year to 750,000 shares and
limits the amount of cash based awards that may be granted to any person during any year to $1.25 million.

Options. Only non-qualified options may be granted under the Amended Stock Plan. Options are granted at a price equal
to 100% of the fair market value of the common stock on the date of the grant. On March 20, 2003, the closing price for
HCPI s common stock on the NYSE was $34.25. Options may not be exercised more than ten years from the date of the
grant. Subject to the limitations contained in
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the Amended Stock Plan, options become exercisable at such times and in such installments as the Committee may provide. Written
instruments verify the grant of award under the Amended Stock Plan and may include other terms and conditions consistent with the
Amended Stock Plan, as the Committee may determine.

Restricted Stock. Restricted stock may be issued to participants subject to such restrictions and vesting conditions as determined by
the Committee. Typically, restricted stock may be repurchased by HCPI at the original purchase price if the conditions or restrictions
are not met. In general, restricted stock may not be sold or otherwise transferred or hypothecated until the restrictions are removed or
expire. Participants awarded restricted stock will have voting rights and may receive dividends prior to the time when the restrictions
lapse.

Stock Performance Awards.  Stock performance awards are stock bonus or other performance or incentive awards that are paid in
shares of common stock, typically without payment of consideration. The number of shares of common stock underlying a stock
performance award shall be determined by the Committee and may be linked to the performance objectives or other specific
performance criteria determined to be appropriate by the Committee, in each case on a specified date or dates or over any period or
periods determined by the Committee. In making such determinations, the Committee shall consider (among such other factors as it
deems relevant in light of the specific type of award) the contributions, responsibilities and other compensation of the particular key
employee or consultant. Common stock underlying a stock performance award will not be issued until the stock performance award
has vested, pursuant to a vesting schedule or attaining the specified performance criteria, as set by the Committee.

Dividend Equivalents. Dividend equivalents represent the right to receive the equivalent value (in cash or common stock) of
dividends paid on HCPI common stock. The Committee determines (i) the number of shares of common stock subject to the dividend
equivalents, (ii) the period during which dividend equivalents shall be credited to the participant, (iii) the timing of payment to the
participant of dividend equivalents credited to the participant, (iv) whether the dividend equivalents are to be paid in cash or shares of
common stock, and (v) any other limitations and conditions as it deems appropriate with respect to the crediting and payment of
dividend equivalents.

Cash Based Awards. Cash based awards provide participants with the opportunity to earn a cash payment based upon the level of
performance of the Company relative to one or more performance criteria established by the Committee for an award cycle as
determined by the Committee, consisting of any period of time up to five years. For each award cycle, the Committee shall determine
the amount of the cash based award, the performance criteria, the performance target levels as to each of the performance criteria and
the weighting of the performance criteria, if more than one performance criteria is applicable. Cash based awards may be subject to
any condition imposed by the Committee, including a reservation of the right to revoke a cash based award at any time before it is
paid.

Restricted Stock Awards to Non-Employee Directors. The Amended Stock Plan provides that effective as of the 2004
annual meeting of stockholders, each non-employee Director will be automatically granted as of the date of each annual
meeting of stockholders at which such person continues as a non-employee Director:

1,200 shares of restricted stock; and

for any year in which HCPI s total return to stockholders exceeds by three percentage points the total return of the health care
equity segment of the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts
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( NAREIT ), 300 shares of restricted stock. HCPI s total return to stockholders is defined as (A) the sum of (1) the fair market of
HCPI s common stock as of December 31 of the year in question minus the fair market value of HCPI s common stock as of
January 1 of that year, plus (2) the aggregate dividends paid to HCPI s stockholders during that year, divided by (B) the fair market
value of HCPI s common stock as of January 1 of that year. The total return of the NAREIT health care equity segment is defined
as the average total return of companies in the NAREIT health care equity segment as published by NAREIT.

In addition, upon the initial appointment or election of a person as a non-employee Director, such person shall be automatically awarded 1,200
shares of restricted stock, and will be eligible to receive the annual awards set forth above, provided, however, that if the person is first
appointed to the board within six months preceding an annual meeting, such Director will not receive the automatic 1,200 restricted stock award
otherwise awarded on the date of that first meeting.

All shares of restricted stock vest ratably over four years and are subject to forfeiture if the non-employee Director s membership on the Board of
Directors is terminated under certain circumstances.

Performance-Based Awards.  Stock performance awards, dividend equivalents, restricted stock or cash based awards intended to qualify as

performance based compensation under Section 162(m) of the Code, may be payable upon the attainment of objective performance goals that
are established by the Committee and relate to one or more performance criteria, in each case on specified date or over any period determined by
the Committee. The performance criteria upon which such awards may be granted include the following business criteria with respect to the
Company, any subsidiary or any division or operating unit: (i) net income, (ii) pre-tax income, (iii) operating income, (iv) cash flow, (v) earnings
per share, (vi) return on equity, (vii) return on invested capital or assets, (viii) cost reductions or savings, (ix) funds from operations, (x) adjusted
funds from operations, (xi) cash and/or funds available for distribution, (xii) appreciation in the fair market value of common stock, (xiii) return
on investment, (xiv) total return to stockholders, (xv) net earnings, and (xvi) earnings before any one or more of the following items: interest,
taxes, depreciation or amortization. Such performance goals also may be based on the achievement of the specified levels of performance under
one or more of the measures described above relative to the performance of one or more other corporations or indices.

Payment for Shares. An option may be exercised by payment in full of the option exercise price at the time of exercise. The exercise price may
be paid in cash or, in the discretion of the Committee, by deliverance of shares of common stock owned by the optionee (or issuable upon
exercise of the option), through a broker assisted cashless exercise or by promissory note secured by shares of common stock bearing interest at
arate determined by the Committee, or by any combination of the above all to the extent not prohibited by and subject to any restrictions of
applicable law. Proceeds received by HCPI from the sale of common stock pursuant to the exercise of options under the Amended Stock Plan
will be used for general corporate purposes.

Miscellaneous. The Committee has the discretion to amend, suspend or terminate the Amended Stock Plan at any time. However, our
stockholders must approve of any amendment which (i) increases the number of shares of common stock subject to the Amended Stock Plan, (ii)
would permit repricing on any outstanding award, or (iii) would require stockholder approval as a matter of law, stock exchange regulation or
exemptive condition. The Amended Stock Plan terminates on April 28, 2008.

In the event of a participant s death, permanent disability or retirement, each outstanding award will become fully vested and exercisable
immediately or payable immediately, as applicable.
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Plan Benefits. During 2002, 7,000 stock options and 2,800 restricted stock awards were granted to Directors, and 968,500 stock options and
154,450 restricted stock awards were granted to employees of HCPI, which includes 750,000 options and 130,000 incentive awards to executive
officers. The Committee intends to grant stock performance awards to its senior employees for 2002 performance subject to and following
stockholder approval of this proposal. The amount and terms of these awards have not been established.

Certain Federal Income Tax Consequences

The federal income tax consequences of the Amended Stock Plan under current federal income tax law are summarized in the following
discussion that deals with the general tax principles applicable to the Amended Stock Plan, and is intended for general information only. In
addition, the tax consequences described below are subject to the limitations of Section 162(m), as discussed in further detail below. Alternative
minimum tax and other federal taxes and foreign, state and local income taxes are not discussed, and may vary depending on individual
circumstances and from locality to locality.

Non-qualified, Non-Statutory Stock Options. For federal income tax purposes, the recipient of non-qualified, non-statutory options granted
under the Amended Stock Plan will not have taxable income upon the grant of the option, nor will the Company then be entitled to any
deduction. Generally, upon exercise of such options the optionee will realize ordinary income, and the Company will be entitled to a deduction,
in an amount equal to the difference between the option exercise price and the fair market value of the stock at the date of exercise.

Restricted Stock and Stock Performance Awards. A participant to whom restricted stock or a stock performance award is issued will not have
taxable income upon issuance and HCPI will not then be entitled to a deduction unless, in the case of restricted stock, an election is made under
Section 83(b) of the Code. However, when restrictions on shares of restricted stock lapse, such that the shares are no longer subject to repurchase
by HCPI, the participant will realize ordinary income and HCPI will be entitled to a deduction in an amount equal to the fair market value of the
shares at the date such restrictions lapse, less the purchase price therefore. Similarly, when stock performance awards vest or all conditions are
satisfied and are issued to the participant, the participant will realize ordinary income and HCPI will be entitled to a deduction in an amount
equal to the fair market value of the shares at the date of issuance. If an election is made under Section 83(b) with respect to restricted stock, the
participant will realize ordinary income at the date of issuance equal to the difference between the fair market value of the shares at that date less
the purchase price therefore and HCPI will be entitled to a deduction in the same amount. The Code does not permit a Section 83(b) election to
be made with respect to stock performance awards.

Dividend Equivalents. A recipient of a dividend equivalent award will not realize taxable income at the time of grant, and HCPI will not be
entitled to a deduction at that time. When a dividend equivalent is paid, the participant will recognize ordinary income, and HCPI will be entitled
to a corresponding deduction.

Cash-Based Awards. A participant who has been granted a cash-based performance award will not realize taxable income at the time of grant,
and HCPI will not be entitled to a deduction at that time. When an award is paid the participant will have ordinary income, and HCPI will be
entitled to a corresponding deduction.

Section 162(m). Under Code Section 162(m), in general, income tax deductions of publicly-traded companies may be limited to the extent total
compensation (including base salary, annual bonus, stock option exercises and nonqualified benefits paid in 1994 and thereafter) for certain
executive officers exceeds $1 million
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in any one taxable year. However, under Code Section 162(m), the deduction limit does not apply to certain performance-based compensation
established by an independent compensation committee which conforms to certain restrictive conditions stated under the Code and related
regulations. The Amended Stock Plan has been structured with the intent that awards granted under the Amended Stock Plan may meet the
requirements for performance-based compensation under Code Section 162(m); options granted under the Amended Stock Plan are intended to
so qualify, while restricted stock awards, stock performance awards and cash based awards granted under the Amended Stock Plan may only
qualify as performance-based if they vest, are issuable or paid based upon the performance criteria, and the Committee otherwise complies with
the requirements of the Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE FOR APPROVING THE AMENDMENT AND
RESTATEMENT OF 2000 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN.

RATIFICATION OF THE SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

(Proxy Item No. 3)

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has selected the firm of Ernst & Young LLP as independent public accountants for HCPI for the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2003, and is submitting its selection for ratification by our stockholders. Ernst & Young LLP has served as the
Company s independent accountant since May 2002. The Audit Committee carefully considered the firm s qualifications as independent
accountants for HCPI. This included a review of the qualifications of the engagement team, the quality control procedures the firm has
established, and any issues raised by the most recent quality control review of the firm. The Audit Committee s review also included matters
regarding auditor independence including whether the nature and extent of non-audit services would impair the independence of the accountants.
Services provided to the Company and its subsidiaries by Ernst & Young LLP in fiscal 2002 are described under Audit and Non-Audit Fees
above.

Unless you specifically make another choice in the attached proxy, HCPI will count your vote as for the ratification of the selection of Ernst &
Young LLP. If the stockholders do not ratify the selection of Ernst & Young LLP, the Audit Committee will consider the selection of other
independent accountants. The Audit Committee retains the power to replace the independent accountants whose selection was ratified by
stockholders if the Audit Committee determines that the best interests of HCPI warrant a change of its independent accountants. A representative
of Ernst & Young LLP is expected to be present at the May 7, 2003 annual meeting and will have an opportunity to make a statement if s/he
desires to do so. Ernst & Young LLP s representative is expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE FOR RATIFICATION OF THE SELECTION
OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP AS HCPI S INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,
2003.

VOTING PROCEDURES

The representation, in person or by properly executed proxy, of the holders of a majority of the shares of HCPI common stock entitled to vote at
the annual meeting is necessary to constitute a quorum at the annual meeting. Shares of HCPI common stock represented in person or by proxy
will be counted for the purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the annual meeting. Shares that abstain from voting on any
proposal,
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or that are represented by broker non-votes (i.e., shares held by a broker or nominee which are represented at the meeting, but with respect to
which such broker or nominee is not instructed to vote on a particular proposal) will be treated as shares that are present and entitled to vote at
the annual meeting for purposes of determining whether a quorum exists. Holders may vote in person or via paper ballot.

You may revoke the enclosed proxy at any time before it is exercised. If you attend the meeting and vote in person, your proxy will not be used.

Election of Directors (Proxy Item No. 1)

The affirmative vote of a plurality of all of the votes cast at a meeting at which a quorum is present is necessary for the election of a director. For
the purposes of the election of directors, abstentions will have no effect on the outcome of the vote. The election of directors is a matter on
which a broker or other nominee is empowered to vote. Accordingly, no broker non-votes will result from this proposal. Stockholders are not
permitted to cumulate their shares for the purpose of electing directors or otherwise.

Authorization of Additional Shares Under the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (Proxy Item No. 2)

In order to approve the amendment and restatement of the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, the NYSE requires that: (i) greater than 50% in interest of

all securities entitled to vote on the proposal cast a vote on the proposal, and (ii) a majority of such votes cast must vote for the proposal. For
purposes of the first requirement, votes for , votes against and abstentions count as votes cast, while all outstanding shares, including votes for ,
votes against , abstentions and broker non-votes, count as entitled to vote on the proposal. Thus, under the first prong of the NYSE requirements,

the total sum of votes for , votes against and abstentions must be greater than 50% of the total outstanding shares of our common stock. A broker
non-vote will count as entitled to vote in satisfying the first prong of the NYSE requirement, but does not count as a vote cast. In order to satisfy

the second prong of the NYSE requirements, the number of votes cast for the proposal must be greater than 50% of the votes for , votes against
and abstentions. Thus, broker non-votes have no effect on the second prong of the NYSE requirement. Brokers are expected to have

discretionary authority to vote on the amendment and restatement of the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, and thus broker non-votes are not expected

on this proposal.

Ratification of the Selection of Independent Public Accountants (Proxy Item No. 3)

The affirmative vote of a majority of all of the votes cast at a meeting at which a quorum is present is required for the ratification of the selection
of Ernst & Young LLP as independent accountants for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2003. Abstentions as to this proposal will have no
effect on the outcome of the vote. The ratification of the Company s independent accountants is a matter on which a broker or other nominee is
empowered to vote. Accordingly, no broker non-votes will result from this proposal.

DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF STOCKHOLDER

PROPOSALS FOR NEXT YEAR S ANNUAL MEETING

It is currently contemplated that HCPI s 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held on or about May 1, 2004. In the event that a
stockholder desires to have a proposal considered for presentation at the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and inclusion in the proxy
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statement and form of proxy used in connection with such meeting, the proposal must be forwarded in writing to the Corporate Secretary of
HCPI so that it is received no later than November 25, 2003. Any such proposal must comply with the requirements of HCPI s Bylaws and Rule
14a-8 promulgated under the Exchange Act.
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If a stockholder, rather than including a proposal in HCPI s proxy statement as discussed above, commences his or her own proxy solicitation for
the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders or seeks to nominate a candidate for election or to propose business for consideration at such meeting,
HCPI must receive notice of such proposal no earlier than February 6, 2004 and no later than March 8, 2004. If the notice is not received

between February 6, 2004 and March 8, 2004, it will be considered untimely under HCPI s Bylaws, and HCPI will have discretionary voting
authority under proxies solicited for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders with respect to such proposal, if presented at the meeting.

Proposals and notices should be directed to the attention of the Corporate Secretary, Health Care Property Investors, Inc., 4675 MacArthur
Court, Suite 900, Newport Beach, California 92660.

OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors knows of no matters to be presented at the annual meeting other than those described in this proxy statement. Other
business may properly come before the meeting, and in that event it is the intention of the persons named in the accompanying proxy to vote in
accordance with their judgment on such matters.

The cost of the solicitation of proxies will be borne by HCPI. In addition to solicitation by mail, directors and officers of HCPI, without
receiving any additional compensation, may solicit proxies personally or by telephone. HCPI will request brokerage houses, banks, and other
custodians or nominees holding stock in their names for others to forward proxy materials to their customers or principals who are the beneficial
owners of shares of our common stock and will reimburse them for their expenses in doing so. HCPI has retained the services of Georgeson
Shareholder Communications Inc., for a fee of $9,000 plus out-of-pocket expenses, to assist in the solicitation of proxies.

HCPI s annual report to stockholders, including HCPI s audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2002, is being mailed
herewith to all stockholders of record as of March 10, 2003. HCPI will provide without charge to any person solicited hereby, upon the written
request of any such person, a copy of HCPI S Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 filed with the SEC. Such
requests should be directed to James G. Reynolds, Executive Vice President of Health Care Property Investors, Inc., at 4675 MacArthur Court,
Suite 900, Newport Beach, California 92660. You may also obtain an electronic version of our Annual Report on Form 10-K from the Security
and Exchange Commission s website located at www.sec.gov or from our website located at www.hcpi.com.

If you are a stockholder of record, you can elect to receive future annual reports and proxy statements electronically by marking the appropriate
box on your proxy card. If you choose this option, when the annual report and proxy materials are mailed to stockholders, you will either receive
an electronic version of our annual report and proxy materials or you will receive a notice listing the website location of the annual report and
proxy documents. Your choice to receive annual report and proxy material electronically will remain in effect until you notify HCPI by mail that
you wish to resume mail delivery of these documents. If you hold your HCPI stock through a bank, broker or another holder of record, refer to
the information provided by that entity for instructions on how to elect this option. HCPI encourages stockholders to register to receive future
annual reports and materials via the Internet.
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ALL STOCKHOLDERS ARE URGED TO VOTE IN PERSON OR TO COMPLETE, SIGN AND RETURN THE ACCOMPANYING
PROXY CARD IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Edward J. Henning
Corporate Secretary

Newport Beach, California

March 26, 2003
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ANNEX A

HEALTH CARE PROPERTY INVESTORS, INC.
2000 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

(As Amended and Restated Effective as of May 7, 2003)

1. Purpose of the Plan.

The purpose of the Health Care Property Investors, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the Plan ) is to promote the interests of the Company and its

stockholders by strengthening the Company s ability to attract, motivate and retain employees, consultants and directors of training, experience

and ability, and to provide a means to encourage stock ownership and proprietary interest in the Company to valued employees, consultants and

directors of the Company upon whose judgment, initiative, and efforts the continued financial success and growth of the business of the

Company largely depend. The Second Amended and Restated Directors Stock Incentive Plan of Health Care Property Investors, Inc. (the
Directors Plan ) was merged into the Plan upon the approval of the Plan by the Company s stockholders in 2000. Any outstanding awards under

the Directors Plan as of the date of the stockholders approval of the Plan in 2000 are administered as herein stated and such awards may be

reissued under the Plan if they are subsequently forfeited or expire before being exercised. The Plan has been amended and restated effective as

of May 7, 2003.

2. Definitions.

(a) Award Limit means 750,000 shares of Common Stock, as adjusted pursuant to Section 11; provided, however, that solely with respect to
Cash Based Awards granted pursuant to Section 7(g), the Award Limit shall mean $1,250,000.

(b) Board means the Board of Directors of the Company.

(c) Cash Based Award means an award, as described in Section 7(g), that, if paid, must be paid in cash and that is neither denominated in nor
has a value derived from the value of, or an exercise or conversion privilege at a price related to, shares of Common Stock.

(d) Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

(e) Committee means the Compensation Committee of the Board (or another committee of the Board assuming the functions of the Committee
under this Plan); provided however, that with respect to Incentive Awards granted to Non-Employee Directors, Committee means the Board.
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(f)  Common Stock means the $1.00 par value Common Stock of the Company.

(g) Company means Health Care Property Investors, Inc.

(h)  Consultant means any consultant or adviser if (i) the consultant or adviser renders bona fide services to the Company; (ii) the services
rendered by the consultant or adviser are not in connection with the offer or sale of securities in a capital-raising transaction and do not directly

or indirectly promote or maintain a market for the Company s securities; and (iii) the consultant or adviser is a natural person who has contracted
directly with the Company to render such services.

(i)  Directors Plan means the Second Amended and Restated Directors Stock Incentive Plan.
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(G)  Disability means the total and permanent incapacity of an Employee or Non-Employee Director, due to physical impairment or legally
established mental incompetence, to perform the usual duties of an Employee or a member of the Board, as applicable, which disability shall be
determined on the basis of (i) medical evidence by a licensed physician designated by the Company or (ii) evidence that the Employee or
Non-Employee Director has become entitled to receive primary benefits as a disabled employee under the Social Security Act in effect on the
date of such disability.

(k)  Dividend Equivalents means the right, under such terms as are determined in the discretion of the Committee, to receive the equivalent
value (in cash or Common Stock) of dividends paid on Common Stock, awarded pursuant to Section 7(e).

(1)  Effective Date means the effective date of the Plan, March 23, 2000.

(m)  Eligible Person means any Employee, Consultant or Non-Employee Director.

(n) Employee means any officer or other employee (as defined in accordance with Section 3401(c) of the Code) of the Company, or of any of
its present or future parent or subsidiary corporations.

(o)  Fair Market Value means for a share of Common Stock as of a given date shall be the closing price of a share of Common Stock on the
principal exchange on which shares of Common Stock are then trading, if any (or as reported on any composite index which includes such
principal exchange), on such date, or if shares were not traded on such date, then on the next preceding date on which a trade occurred.

(p) Incentive Award means an Option, Dividend Equivalent, Restricted Stock Award, Stock Performance Award, or Cash Based Award
granted under the Plan.

(@) NAREIT means The National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (or successor thereto).

(r)  NAREIT Total Return means the average Total Return for the healthcare equity segment as published in the NAREIT Performance Indices
by NAREIT.

(s)  Non-Employee Director means a member of the Board who is not an Employee.

(t)  Option means a nonqualified or nonstatutory stock option and with respect to grants made to Non-Employee Directors, also includes a
Special Option, as defined in Section 9(a)(i).
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(u)  Participant means any Eligible Person selected to participate in an Incentive Award pursuant to Section 5(a).

(v)  Performance Criteria means the following business criteria with respect to the Company, any subsidiary or any division or operating unit
thereof: (i) net income, (ii) pre-tax income, (iii) operating income, (iv) cash flow, (v) earnings per share, (vi) return on equity, (vii) return on
invested capital or assets, (viii) cost reductions or savings, (ix) funds from operations, (x) adjusted funds from operations, (xi) cash and/or funds
available for distribution, (xii) appreciation in the fair market value of Common Stock, (xiii) return on investment, (xiv) total return to
stockholders, (xv) net earnings, and (xvi) earnings before any one or more of the following items: interest, taxes, depreciation or amortization.
Such business criteria may be based on the achievement of the specified levels of performance under one or more of the measures described
above relative to the performance of one or more other corporations or indices. Each of the business criteria described above shall be determined
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ( GAAP ). For each fiscal year

A-2
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of the Company, the Committee may provide for objectively determinable adjustments, as determined in accordance with GAAP, to any of the
business criteria described in subsections above for one or more of the items of gain, loss, profit or expense: (A) determined to be extraordinary
or unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence, (B) related to the disposal of a segment of a business, (C) related to a change in accounting
principle under GAAP, (D) related to discontinued operations that do not qualify as a segment of a business under GAAP, and (E) attributable to
the business operations of any entity acquired by the Company during the fiscal year.

(w)  Permissible Termination means a Non-Employee Director s (i) death, (ii) Disability, (iii) removal from the Board without cause (not
including a failure to be re-elected) or (iv) Retirement from the Board.

(x)  Plan means the Health Care Property Investors, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan as set forth herein, which may be further amended and/or
restated from time to time.

(y)  Restricted Stock Award means a right to the grant or purchase, at a price determined by the Committee, of Common Stock of the Company
which is nontransferable and subject to substantial risk of forfeiture until specific conditions are met. Conditions may be based on continuing
employment or attainment of performance goals which are related to one or more of the performance criteria or a combination thereof.

(z)  Retirement means the Participant (i) reached age sixty five and completed five years of service as an Employee or a Board member or (ii)
reached the age of sixty and completed fifteen years of service as an Employee or a Board member.

(aa)  Section 162(m) Participant means any key Employee designated by the Committee as a key Employee whose compensation for the fiscal
year in which the key Employee is so designated or a future fiscal year may be subject to the limit on deductible compensation imposed by
Section 162(m) of the Code.

(bb)  Stock Performance Award shall mean a stock bonus or other performance or incentive award that is paid in Common Stock awarded
under Section 10 of the Plan.

(cc)  Total Return means for any person for any calendar year the sum of (X) the per share Fair Market Value as of December 31 of such year
minus the per share Fair Market Value of the Common Stock as of January 1 of such year and (Y) the aggregate dividends paid to stockholders
during such calendar year, divided by (Z) the per share Fair Market Value as of January 1 of such year, as such definition may be amended

by NAREIT.

3. Shares of Common Stock Subject to the Plan.

(a) Subject to the provisions of Section 3(e) and Section 11 of the Plan, the number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued or
transferred or exercised pursuant to Incentive Awards under the Plan shall not exceed 5,702,400 shares (which includes the number of shares
authorized and available for issuance under the Directors Plan as of the date of the stockholders initial approval of the Plan in 2000); provided,
however, that of the authorized number of shares of Common Stock under the Plan, the number of shares that may be issued or transferred or
exercised pursuant to Restricted Stock Awards, Dividend Equivalents or Stock Performance Awards under the Plan shall not exceed 1,000,000
shares.
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(b) Subject to the provisions of Section 11, the maximum number of shares of Common Stock with respect to which options or rights may be
granted to any Participant during any one calendar year shall not exceed the Award Limit. To the extent required by Section 162(m) of the Code,
shares subject to Options which are canceled continue to be counted against the Award Limit.

A-3
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(c) The shares of Common Stock to be delivered under the Plan shall be made available, at the discretion of the Board or the Committee, either
from authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock or from previously issued shares of Common Stock reacquired by the Company,
including shares purchased on the open market.

(d) If any Incentive Award expires or is canceled without having been fully exercised, or is exercised in whole or in part for cash as permitted
by this Plan, the number of shares subject to such Incentive Award or other right but as to which such Incentive Award was not exercised prior
to its expiration, cancellation or exercise may again be optioned, granted or awarded hereunder, subject to the limitations of Sections 3(a) and
3(b). Furthermore, any shares subject to Incentive Awards which are adjusted pursuant to Section 11 and become exercisable with respect to
shares of stock of another corporation shall be considered cancelled and may again be optioned, granted or awarded hereunder, subject to the
limitations of Sections 3(a) and 3(b). Shares of Common Stock which are delivered by the Participant or withheld by the Company upon the
exercise of an Incentive Award, in payment of the exercise price thereof, may again be optioned, granted or awarded hereunder, subject to the
limitations of Sections 3(a) and 3(b). If any Incentive Award is forfeited or repurchased by the Company, such share may again be optioned,
granted or awarded hereunder, subject to the limitations of Section 3(a) and 3(b).

4. Administration of the Plan.

(a) The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. The Committee shall consist solely of two members appointed by and holding office at

the pleasure of the Board, each of whom is both an outside director for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Code and a non-employee director as
defined by Rule 16b-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (' Rule 16b-3 ). The Committee may include more than two members appointed
by the Board so long as such additional members are outside directors for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Code and are a non-employee
director as defined by Rule 16b-3 or, if not a non-employee director at the time of any Incentive Award grant, the grant of an Incentive Award
must otherwise satisfy an exemption under Rule 16b-3. Committee members may resign at any time by delivering written notice to the Board.
Vacancies in the Committee may be filled by the Board. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may assume all or some of the duties and
responsibilities of the Committee from time to time.

(b) The Committee has and may exercise such powers and authority of the Board as may be necessary or appropriate for the Committee to
carry out its functions as described in the Plan. The Committee has authority in its discretion to determine the Eligible Persons to whom, and the
time or times at which, Incentive Awards may be granted and the number of shares subject to each Incentive Award. The Committee also has
authority to interpret the Plan, and to determine the terms and provisions of the respective Incentive Awards agreements and to make all other
determinations necessary or advisable for Plan administration. The Committee has authority to prescribe, amend, and rescind rules and
regulations relating to the Plan. All interpretations, determinations, and actions by the Committee shall be final, conclusive, and binding upon all
parties.

(¢) No member of the Board or the Committee shall be liable for any action or determination made in good faith by the Board or the
Committee with respect to the Plan or any Incentive Award under it.

(d) If NAREIT amends its definition of Total Return or the NAREIT Total Return is no longer available, the Committee may redefine Total
Return and NAREIT Total Return to correspond to such amended definition or to replace such definition.

5. Eligibility.
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(a) Any Employee or Consultant, who has been determined by the Committee to be a key Employee or Consultant, and any Non-Employee
Director is eligible to receive Incentive Awards under the Plan. The

47



Edgar Filing: UMH PROPERTIES, INC. - Form 10-Q

Committee has authority, in its sole discretion, to determine and designate from time to time those Eligible Persons who are to be granted
Incentive Awards, and the type and amount of Incentive Award to be granted.

(b) Each Incentive Award shall be evidenced by a written instrument and may include any other terms and conditions consistent with the Plan,
as the Committee may determine. If grants of Incentive Awards, at the discretion of the Committee, are intended to qualify as
performance-based compensation as described in Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code, the award agreements shall contain such terms and
conditions as may be necessary to meet the applicable provisions of Section 162(m) of the Code.

6. Provisions Applicable to Section 162(m) Participants

(a) The Committee, in its discretion, may determine whether an Incentive Award is to qualify as performance-based compensation as described
in Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code.

(b) Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, the Committee may grant an Incentive Award to a Section 162(m) Participant,
including Restricted Stock Awards, Dividend Equivalents, Stock Performance Awards and Cash Based Awards, which vests or becomes
exercisable, issuable or payable upon the attainment of performance goals which are related to one or more of the performance criteria.

(c) To the extent necessary to comply with the performance-based compensation requirements of Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code, with
respect to any Incentive Award granted under Sections 7, 8 or 10 which may be granted to one or more Section 162(m) Participants, no later
than ninety (90) days following the commencement of any fiscal year in question or any other designated fiscal period or period of service (or
such other time as may be required or permitted by Section 162(m) of the Code), the Committee shall, in writing, (i) designate one or more
Section 162(m) Participants, (ii) select the performance criteria applicable to the fiscal year or other designated fiscal period or period of service,
(iii) establish the various performance targets, in terms of an objective formula or standard, and amounts of such Incentive Awards, as
applicable, which may be earned for such fiscal year or other designated fiscal period or period of service and (iv) specify the relationship
between performance criteria and the performance targets and the amounts of such Incentive Awards, as applicable, to be earned by each Section
162(m) Participant for such fiscal year or other designated fiscal period or period of service. Following the completion of each fiscal year or
other designated fiscal period or period of service, the Committee shall certify in writing whether the applicable performance targets have been
achieved for such fiscal year or other designated fiscal period or period of service. In determining the amount earned by a Section 162(m)
Participant, the Committee shall have the right to reduce (but not to increase) the amount payable at a given level of performance to take into
account additional factors that the Committee may deem relevant to the assessment of individual or corporate performance for the fiscal year or
other designated fiscal period or period of service.

(d) Furthermore, notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, any Incentive Award which is granted to a Section 162(m) Participant and is
intended to qualify as performance-based compensation as described in Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code shall be subject to any additional
limitations set forth in Section 162(m) of the Code (including any amendment to Section 162(m) of the Code) or any regulations or rulings
issued thereunder that are requirements for qualification as performance-based compensation as described in Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code,
and the Plan shall be deemed amended to the extent necessary to conform to such requirements.

7. Terms and Conditions of Stock Options, Dividend Equivalents and Cash Based Awards.

(a) The purchase price of Common Stock under each Option shall be determined by the Committee, and may not be less than 100% of the Fair
Market Value of the Common Stock on the date of the grant.

48



Edgar Filing: UMH PROPERTIES, INC. - Form 10-Q

A-5

49



Edgar Filing: UMH PROPERTIES, INC. - Form 10-Q

(b) Options may be exercised as determined by the Committee but in no event after ten years from the date of grant; provided, however, that in
the event of the Participant s Retirement (or if the Participant retires with the consent of the Company or any subsidiary thereof at an earlier age),
death or Disability while employed by the Company, all Options, right to credit or credits for Dividend Equivalents and Cash Based Awards

then outstanding under the Plan shall be fully vested and immediately exercisable or immediately payable.

(c) Except as set forth below, upon the exercise of an Option, the purchase price shall be payable in full in cash, or, in the discretion of the
Committee, by the assignment and delivery to the Company of shares of Common Stock owned by the optionee (or issuable to the Participant
upon exercise of the Option); or in the discretion of the Committee by a promissory note secured by shares of Common Stock bearing interest at
arate determined by the Committee but not less than the minimum rate permitted by the Internal Revenue Service; or by a combination of any of
the above. Any shares so assigned and delivered to the Company in payment or partial payment of the purchase price shall be valued at their Fair
Market Value on the exercise date. The Committee may, in its discretion and upon the request of the optionee, allow payment, in whole or in
part, through the delivery of a notice that the optionee has placed a market sell order with a broker with respect to shares of Common Stock then
issuable upon exercise of the Option, and the broker pays a sufficient portion of the net proceeds of the sale to the Company in satisfaction of the
Option exercise price. No payment by an assignment of shares, by a promissory note or by any combination thereof, or by the broker-assisted
exercise described above, shall be allowed unless such payments are allowed under applicable requirements of Federal and state tax, securities
and other laws, rules and regulations and by any regulatory authority having jurisdiction.

(d) The Committee may, in its sole discretion, authorize all or a portion of the Options to be granted to an optionee to be on terms which
permit transfer by such optionee to (i) any child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse, former spouse, sibling, niece,
nephew, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, including adoptive relationships, any person
sharing the household (other than a tenant or employee) of the optionee ( Family Members ), (ii) a trust in which such Family Members have
more than fifty percent of the beneficial interest, (iii) a foundation in which such Family Members or the optionee control the management of
assets, or (iv) any other entity in which such Family Members or the optionee own more than fifty percent of the voting interests, provided that
(w) there may be no consideration for any such transfer, (x) the stock option agreement pursuant to which such options are granted must
expressly provide for transferability in a manner consisted with this Section, (y) the Committee, in its sole discretion, shall approve any transfer
in advance, and (z) subsequent transfers of transferred options shall be prohibited except by will or the laws of descent and distribution.
Following transfer, any such options shall continue to be subject to the same terms and conditions as were applicable immediately prior to
transfer. The consequences of any termination of employment of the original optionee shall continue to be applied, following which the options
shall be exercisable by the transferee only to the extent by, and for the periods that were applicable for, the original optionee.

(e) The right to be credited with Dividend Equivalents may be granted to a Participant in the discretion of the Committee. The Committee shall
determine (i) the number of shares of Common Stock subject to the Dividend Equivalents, (ii) the period during which Dividend Equivalents
shall be credited to the Participant s account, (iii) the timing of payment to the Participant of Dividend Equivalents credited to the Participant s
account, (iv) whether the Dividend Equivalents are to be paid in cash or shares of Common Stock, and (v) any other limitations and conditions
as it deems appropriate with respect to the crediting and payment of Dividend Equivalents. In addition, the Committee, in its discretion, may
determine whether a right to be credited with Dividend Equivalents is to qualify as performance-based compensation as described in Section
162(m)(4)(C) of the Code.
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(f) No fractional shares shall be issued pursuant to the exercise of an Option or the determination of Dividend Equivalents nor shall any cash
payment be made in lieu of fractional shares.

(g) Cash Based Awards may be granted to Participants at the discretion of the Committee, which provide Participants with the opportunity to
earn a cash payment based upon the level of performance of the Company relative to one or more performance criteria established by the
Committee for an award cycle as determined by the Committee, consisting of any period of time up to five years. For each award cycle, the
Committee shall determine the amount of the Cash Based Award, the performance criteria, the performance target levels as to each of the
performance criteria and the weighting of the performance criteria, if more than one performance criteria is applicable. Cash Based Awards to
Section 162(m) Participants that are either granted or become vested, exercisable or payable based on attainment of one or more performance
criteria shall only be granted as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code. Cash Based Awards may be subject
to any condition imposed by the Committee, including a reservation of the right to revoke a Cash Based Award at any time before it is paid. The
maximum amount of any Cash Based Award payable to a Section 162(m) Participant under this Section 7(g) with respect to any calendar year
shall not exceed the Award Limit.

(h) An Option held by, those rights to credits of Dividend Equivalents granted to, and Dividend Equivalents credited to a person who was an
Eligible Person at the time such Option and right to credits or credits of Dividend Equivalents were granted shall expire immediately if and when
the Participant ceases to be an Eligible Person, except as follows:

(1) If the employment or service of a Participant is terminated by the Company or any subsidiary thereof other than for cause, for which the
Company shall be the sole judge, then the Options and/or the right to credits or credits of Dividend Equivalents shall expire eight months
thereafter unless by their terms they expire sooner. During said period, the Options may be exercised and credits of Dividend Equivalents made
in accordance with their terms, but only to the extent allowable on the date of termination of employment.

(i) In the event of the Participant s Retirement or if the Participant retires with the consent of the Company or any subsidiary thereof at an
earlier age, the Options and/or right to credits or credits of Dividend Equivalents of the Participant shall expire three years thereafter unless by
their terms they expire sooner. During said period, the Options may be exercised and credits of Dividend Equivalents made in accordance with
their terms, but only to the extent allowable on the date of Retirement, subject to the accelerated vesting of such Options and/or rights to credits
or credits of Dividend Equivalents on the date of Retirement.

(iii) In the event of the Participant s death or Disability while employed by the Company, the Options and/or right to credits or credits of
Dividend Equivalents of the Participant shall expire three years after the date of death or Disability of the Participant unless by their terms they
expire sooner. In the event of the Participant s death or Disability within the eight months referred to in subparagraph (i) above, the Options
and/or right to credits or credits of Dividend Equivalents shall expire one year after the date of death or Disability of the Participant unless by
their terms they expire sooner. In the event of the Participant s death or Disability within the three-year period referred to in subparagraph (ii)
above, the Options and/or right to credits or credits of Dividend Equivalents shall expire upon the later of three years after Retirement or one
year after the date of death or Disability of the Participant unless by their terms they expire sooner.

(i) The Committee may in its sole discretion determine, with respect to an Incentive Award, that any Participant who is on leave of absence for
any reason shall be considered as still in the employ of the Company, provided that rights to such Incentive Award during a leave of absence
shall be limited to the extent to which such right was earned or vested at the commencement of such leave of absence.
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8. Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Awards.

(a) All shares of Restricted Stock Awards granted or sold pursuant to the Plan shall be subject to the following conditions:

(1) The shares may not be sold, transferred or otherwise alienated or hypothecated until the restrictions are removed or expire.

(i) The Committee may require the Participant to enter into an agreement providing that the certificates representing Restricted Stock Awards
granted or sold pursuant to the Plan shall remain in the physical custody of the Company until all restrictions are removed or expire.

(iii) Each certificate representing Restricted Stock Awards granted pursuant to the Plan shall bear a legend making appropriate reference to the
restrictions imposed.

(iv) The Committee may impose other conditions on any shares granted or sold pursuant to the Plan as it may deem advisable, including,
without limitation, restrictions under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, under the requirements of any stock exchange upon which such
shares or shares of the same class are then listed and under any blue sky or other securities laws applicable to such shares.

(b) The restrictions imposed upon Restricted Stock Awards shall lapse in accordance with a schedule or other conditions as determined by the
Committee; provided, however, in the event of the Participant s Retirement (or if the Participant retires with the consent of the Company or any
subsidiary thereof at an earlier age), death or Disability while employed by the Company, all Restricted Stock Awards then outstanding under
the Plan shall be fully vested and immediately exercisable and all restrictions shall immediately cease.

(¢) The Committee, in its discretion, may determine whether a Restricted Stock Award is to qualify as performance-based compensation as
described in Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code.

(d) Subject to the provisions of subparagraph (a) above, the holder thereof shall have all rights of a stockholder with respect to the Restricted
Stock Awards granted or sold, including the right to vote the shares and receive all dividends and other distributions paid or made with respect
thereto.

(e) Except as set forth below, the purchase price (if any) for shares of Restricted Stock Awards shall be payable in full in cash; or by the
assignment and delivery to the Company of shares of Common Stock owned by the holder of the Restricted Stock Awards; or by a promissory
note secured by shares of Common Stock bearing interest at a rate equal to the minimum rate permitted by the Internal Revenue Service; or by a
combination of any of the above. Any shares so assigned and delivered to the Company in payment or partial payment of the purchase price
shall be valued at their Fair Market Value on the purchase date. No payment by an assignment of shares, by a promissory note or by any
combination thereof shall be allowed unless such payments are allowed under applicable requirements of Federal and state tax, securities and
other laws, rules and regulations and by any regulatory authority having jurisdiction.
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9. Terms and Conditions of Incentive Awards to Non-Employee Directors

(a) Effective May 9, 2003 and during the remaining term of the Plan, Non-Employee Directors shall be granted the Incentive Awards set forth
below. All Incentive Awards granted to Non-Employee Directors prior to May 9, 2003, shall be governed by the Plan as in effect prior to May 9,
2003.
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(b) Each person who is initially elected or appointed to the Board after May 9, 2003 as a Non-Employee Director shall be automatically
granted 1,200 shares of Restricted Stock Awards on the date such Non-Employee Director is first elected or appointed.

(c) Commencing with the 2004 annual meeting of the stockholders of the Company and during the remaining term of the Plan, each
Non-Employee Director who is re-elected to the Board at an annual meeting of the stockholders or who otherwise continues to serve as a
Non-Employee Director as of the close of an annual meeting of stockholders shall be automatically granted on such annual meeting date:

(i) 1,200 shares of Restricted Stock Awards; and

(ii) if in the preceding calendar year the Total Return for the Company exceeds by three percentage points the NAREIT Total Return, an
additional 300 shares of Restricted Stock Awards;

provided, however, that if any such Non-Employee Director has not served as a Non-Employee Director for at least six months prior to the date
of the such annual meeting, such Non-Employee Director shall not be eligible for the grant of Restricted Stock Awards set forth in subsection (i)
above. By way of example, a Non-Employee Director who otherwise meets the requirements of this Section 9(c), but has served as a
Non-Employee Director for only three months prior to the date of the commencement of an annual meeting of stockholders shall not be eligible
for the grant of Restricted Stock Awards set forth in subsection (i) above with respect to such meeting, but will be eligible for the grant of
Restricted Stock Awards set forth in subsection (ii) with respect to such meeting provided the requirements of subsection (ii) are otherwise met.

(d) All shares of Restricted Stock Awards granted pursuant to the Plan to Non-Employee Directors will be subject to the following conditions:

(i) Each Restricted Stock Award shall vest in 25% increments on each of the first four anniversaries of the date on which such Restricted Stock
Award is granted.

(i) The unvested portion of any Restricted Stock Award grant shall be forfeited to the Company upon termination of a Non-Employee
Director s membership on the Board unless such Non-Employee Director s termination is a Permissible Termination.

(iii) All Restricted Stock Awards shall become fully vested immediately upon a Non-Employee Director s Permissible Termination.

(iv) Restricted Stock Awards may not be sold, transferred or otherwise alienated or hypothecated until the restrictions are removed or expire.

(v) Each certificate representing a Restricted Stock Award granted pursuant to the Plan will bear a legend making appropriate reference to the
restrictions imposed.
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(vii) The Committee may impose other conditions on any shares granted or sold pursuant to the Plan as it may deem advisable, including,
without limitation, restrictions under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, under the requirements of any stock exchange upon which such
shares or shares of the same class are then listed and under any blue sky or other securities laws applicable to such shares.

(viii) Unless and until any shares of a Restricted Stock Award are forfeited to the Company as provided in subsection (d)(ii) above, the holder
thereof will have all rights of a stockholder with respect to the Restricted Stock Award granted or sold, including the right to vote the shares and
receive all dividends and other distributions paid or made with respect thereto.
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10. Stock Performance Awards.

(a) Subject to the Award Limit, one or more Stock Performance Awards may be granted to any Employee or Consultant whom the Committee
determines should receive such a Stock Performance Award.

(b) The number of shares of Common Stock underlying a Stock Performance Award shall be determined by the Committee and may be linked
to the performance criteria or other specific performance criteria determined to be appropriate by the Committee, in each case on a specified date
or dates or over any period or periods determined by the Committee. In making such determinations, the Committee shall consider (among such
other factors as it deems relevant in light of the specific type of award) the contributions, responsibilities and other compensation of the
particular key Employee or Consultant. Common Stock underlying a Stock Performance Award will not be issued until the Stock Performance
Award has vested, pursuant to a vesting schedule or obtaining performance criteria, as set by the Committee. Unless otherwise provided by the
Committee, a holder of a Stock Performance Award shall have no rights as a Company stockholder with respect to shares of Common Stock
underlying such Stock Performance Award until such time as the Stock Performance Award has vested and the Common Stock underlying the
Stock Performance Award has been issued.

(¢) The term and conditions of a Stock Performance Award shall be set by the Committee in its discretion.

11. Adjustment Provisions.

(a) Subject to Section 11(b), if the outstanding shares of Common Stock of the Company are increased, decreased, or exchanged for a different
number or kind of shares or other securities, or if additional shares or new or different shares or other securities are distributed with respect to
such shares of Common Stock or other securities, through merger, consolidation, sale of all or substantially all the property of the Company,
reorganization, recapitalization, reclassification, stock dividend, stock split, reverse stock split or other distribution with respect to such shares of
Common Stock or other securities, an appropriate and proportionate adjustment may be made in (i) the maximum number and kind of shares
provided in Section 3, (ii) the number and kind of shares or other securities subject to the then outstanding Incentive Awards, and (iii) the price
for each share or other unit of any other securities subject to then outstanding Incentive Awards without change in the aggregate purchase price
or value as to which such Incentive Awards remain exercisable or subject to restrictions.

(b) Despite the provisions of Section 11(a), upon a Change in Control (as defined below) all Incentive Awards then outstanding under the Plan
will be fully vested and exercisable and all restrictions will immediately cease, unless provisions are made in connection with such transaction

for the continuance of the Plan and the assumption or the substitution for such Incentive Awards of new incentive awards covering the stock of a
successor employer corporation, or a parent or subsidiary thereof, with appropriate adjustments as to the number and kind of shares and prices.

In addition, subject to the preceding sentence with respect to grants of Options which are outstanding on the date of a Change in Control, such
Options, to the extent then exercisable (including Options which become exercisable by a Change in Control), shall not expire until the later of

the date specified in the Participant s stock option agreement or the third anniversary after the date of the Participant s termination of employment
or service with the Company; provided, however, that in no event shall such Options be exercisable more than ten (10) years from the date of
grant.

A Change in Control shall be deemed to occur if:
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(1) any Person (as defined in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act )) is or becomes
the Beneficial Owner (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company representing 25%
or more of the
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combined voting power of the Company s then outstanding securities ( Outstanding Company Voting Securities ); provided, however, that
for purposes of this subsection (i), the following shall not constitute a Change of Control: (a) any acquisition directly from the Company,
(b) any acquisition by the Company or any corporation controlled by the Company, (c) any acquisition by any employee benefit plan (or
related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Company or any corporation controlled by the Company, (d) any acquisition by a Person of
25% of the Outstanding Company Voting Securities as a result of an acquisition of common stock of the Company by the Company which,
by reducing the number of shares of common stock of the Company outstanding, increases the proportionate number of shares beneficially
owned by such Person to 25% or more of the Outstanding Company Voting Securities; provided, however, that if a Person shall become
the beneficial owner of 25% or more of the Outstanding Company Voting Securities by reason of a share acquisition by the Company as
described above and shall, after such share acquisition by the Company, become the beneficial owner of any additional shares of common
stock of the Company, then such acquisition shall constitute a Change of Control or (e) any acquisition pursuant to a transaction which
complies with subsection (iii) of this Section 9(b);

(i) during any period of two consecutive years (not including any period prior to the execution of this Plan), individuals who at the beginning
of such period constitute the Board, and any new director (other than a director designated by a person who has entered into an agreement with
the Company to effect a transaction described in Sections 9(b)(i), (ii) or (iv)) whose election by the Board or nomination for election by the
Company s stockholders was approved by a vote of at least two-thirds ¥/3) of the directors then still in office who either were directors at the
beginning of the period or whose election or nomination for election was previously so approved (hereinafter referred to as Continuing
Directors ), cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority thereof;

(iii) the consummation by the company of a merger or consolidation of the Company with any other corporation (or other entity), other than a
merger or consolidation which would result in the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to
represent (either by remaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of the surviving entity) more than 66-%/3% of the
combined voting power of the voting securities of the Company or such surviving entity outstanding immediately after such merger or
consolidation; provided, however, that a merger or consolidation effected to implement a recapitalization of the Company (or similar
transaction) in which no Person acquires more than 25% of the combined voting power of the Company s then outstanding securities shall not
constitute a Change in Control; or

(iv) the stockholders of the Company approve a plan of complete liquidation of the Company or an agreement for the sale or disposition by the
Company of all or substantially all of the Company s assets.

(c) Adjustments under Section 11(a) and 11(b) shall be made by the Committee, whose determination as to what adjustments shall be made
and the extent thereof shall be final, binding, and conclusive. No fractional interest shall be issued under the Plan on account of any such
adjustments.

(d) In the event of a pending or threatened takeover bid or tender offer and pursuant to which 10% or more of the outstanding securities of the
company is acquired, whether or not deemed a tender offer under applicable state or Federal laws, or in the event that any person makes any
filing under sections 13(d) or 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 with respect to the Company, the Committee may in its sole
discretion, without obtaining stockholder approval, at the time of any one or more of the following actions:

(1) Accelerate the exercise dates of any outstanding Option, make all outstanding Options or Cash Based Awards fully vested and exercisable,
accelerate the crediting of Dividend Equivalents or make all credits in a Participant s account immediately payable;
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(i) Determine that all or any portion of conditions associated with a Restricted Stock Award or Stock Performance Award have been met;

(iii) Pay cash to any or all Option or Dividend Equivalent holders in exchange for the cancellation of their outstanding nonstatutory Options or
Dividend Equivalents; or

(iv) Make any other adjustments or amendments to the Plan and outstanding Incentive Awards and substitute new Incentive Awards.

12. Tax Withholding.

The Company shall be entitled to require payment in cash or deduction from other compensation payable to each Participant of any sums
required by Federal, state or local tax law to be withheld with respect to the issuance, vesting, exercise or payment of any Incentive Award. The
Committee may in its discretion and in satisfaction of the foregoing requirement allow such Participant to elect to have the Company withhold
shares of Common Stock otherwise issuable under such Award (or allow the return of shares of Common Stock) having a Fair Market Value
equal to the sums required to be withheld. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the number of shares of Common Stock which may
be withheld with respect to the issuance, vesting, exercise or payment of any Incentive Award (or which may be repurchased from the
Participant of such Incentive Award within six months after such shares of Common Stock were acquired by the Participant from the Company)
in order to satisfy the Participant s Federal and state income and payroll tax liabilities with respect to the issuance, vesting, exercise or payment
of the Incentive Award shall be limited to the number of shares which have a Fair Market Value on the date of withholding or repurchase equal
to the aggregate amount of such liabilities based on the minimum statutory withholding rates for Federal and state tax income and payroll tax
purposes that are applicable to such supplemental taxable income.

13. General Provisions.

(a) Nothing in the Plan or in any instrument executed pursuant to the Plan shall confer upon any Participant any right to continue in the employ
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affect the right of the Company to terminate the employment of any Participant at any time with or
without cause.

(b) No shares of Common Stock shall be issued or transferred pursuant to an Incentive Award unless and until all then applicable requirements
imposed by Federal and state securities and their laws, rules and regulations and by any regulatory agencies having jurisdiction, and by any stock
exchanges upon which the Common Stock may be listed, having been fully met. As a condition precedent to the issuance of shares pursuant to
the grant or exercise of an Incentive Award, the Company may require the Participant to take any reasonable action to meet such requirements.

(c) No Participant and no beneficiary or other person claiming under or through such Participant shall have any right, title or interest in or to
any shares of Common Stock allocated or reserved under the Plan or subject to any Incentive Award except as to such shares of Common Stock,
if any, that have been issued or transferred to such Participant.
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(d) The Company may make such provisions as they deem appropriate to withhold any taxes the Company determines it is required to
withhold in connection with any Incentive Award.

(e) To the extent not prohibited by, and subject to all restrictions of, applicable law, the Committee may authorize a Company loan to a
Participant in connection with (i) the exercise of an Option in an amount not to exceed the aggregate exercise price of the Option being exercised
and the grossed up amount of any Federal and
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state taxes payable in connection with such exercise for the purpose of assisting such optionee to exercise such Option and (ii) the vesting of a
Restricted Stock Award or Stock Performance Award in an amount equal to the grossed up amount of any Federal and state taxes payable as a
result of such vesting. Any such loan may be secured by shares of Common Stock or other collateral deemed adequate by the Committee and
shall comply in all respects with all applicable laws and regulations. The Committee may adopt policies regarding eligibility for such loans, the
maximum amounts thereof and any terms and conditions not specified in the Plan upon which such loans shall be made. In no event shall the
interest rate be less than the minimum rate established by the Internal Revenue Service for the purpose of the purchase and sale of property.

(f) The forms of Options and/or the right to credits or credits for Dividend Equivalents granted under the Plan may contain such other
provisions as the Committee may deem advisable. Without limiting the foregoing and if so authorized by the Committee, the Company may,
with the consent of the Participant, and at any time or from time to time, cancel the right to credits or credits for Dividend Equivalents or all or a
portion of any Option granted under the Plan then subject to exercise and discharge its obligation in respect of the Option and/or the right to
credits or credits for Dividend Equivalents either by payment to the Participant of an amount of cash equal to the excess, if any, of the Fair
Market Value, at such time, of the shares subject to the portion of the Option and/or the right to credits or credits for Dividend Equivalents so
cancelled over the aggregate purchase price specified in the Option and/or the right to credits or credits for Dividend Equivalents covering such
shares, or by issuance or transfer to the Participant of shares of Common Stock with a Fair Market Value, at such time, equal to any such excess,
or by a combination of cash and shares. Upon any such payment of cash or issuance of shares, (i) there shall be charged against the aggregate
limitations set forth in Section 3(a) a number of shares equal to the number of shares so issued plus the number of shares purchasable with the
amount of any cash paid to the Participant on the basis of the Fair Market Value as of the date of payment, and (ii) the number of shares subject
to the portion of the Option so cancelled, less the number of shares so charged against such limitations, shall thereafter be available for other
grants.

(h) No Incentive Award shall be granted or awarded, and with respect to an Incentive Award already granted or awarded under the Plan, such
Incentive Award shall not be exercisable and the shares of Common Stock underlying such Incentive Award shall not be purchasable, if, in the
discretion of the Committee, such Incentive Award would violate the Company s articles of incorporation or would cause the Company to not
qualify as a real estate investment trust.

(1) No Participant may make an election under Section 83(b) of the Code regarding any Incentive Award without the prior consent of the
Committee in its sole discretion.

(G) No Incentive Award and no right under the Plan, contingent or otherwise, shall be assignable or transferable or subject to any encumbrance,
pledge or charge of any nature, subject to the provisions of Section 7(d), except that, under such rules and regulations as the Company may
establish pursuant to the terms of the Plan, a beneficiary may be designated with respect to an Incentive Award in the event of death of a
Participant. If such beneficiary is the executor or administrator of the estate of the Participant, any rights with respect to such Incentive Award
may be transferred to the person or persons or entity (including a trust) entitled thereto under the will of the holder of such Incentive Award.

(k) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the Plan, and any Incentive Award granted or awarded to any individual who is then
subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act, shall be subject to any additional limitations set forth in any applicable exemptive rule under Section
16 of the Exchange Act (including any amendment to Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act) that are requirements for the application of such
exemptive rule. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Plan and Incentive Awards granted or awarded hereunder shall be deemed
amended to the extent necessary to conform to such applicable exemptive rule.
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14. Approval of Plan by Stockholders.

The Plan shall be submitted for the approval of the Company s stockholders within twelve months after the date of the Board s initial adoption of
the Plan. Incentive Awards may be granted or awarded prior to such stockholder approval, provided that such Incentive Awards shall not be
exercisable nor shall such Incentive Awards vest prior to the time when the Plan is approved by the stockholders, and provided further that if

such approval has not been obtained at the end of said twelve-month period, all Awards previously granted or awarded under the Plan shall
thereupon be canceled and become null and void. In addition, if the Board determines that Incentive Awards other than Options which may be
granted to Section 162(m) Participants should continue to be eligible to qualify as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m)(4)(C)
of the Code, the performance criteria must be disclosed to and approved by the Company s stockholders no later than the first stockholder
meeting that occurs in the fifth year following the year in which the Company s stockholders previously approved the performance criteria.

15. Effect of Plan Upon Options and Compensation Plans.

The adoption of the Plan shall not affect any other compensation or incentive plans in effect for the Company or any subsidiary. Nothing in the
Plan shall be construed to limit the right of the Company (a) to establish any other forms of incentives or compensation for Employees,
Non-Employee Directors or Consultants of the Company or any subsidiary or (b) to grant or assume options or other rights or awards otherwise
than under the Plan in connection with any proper corporate purpose including but not by way of limitation, the grant or assumption of options
in connection with the acquisition by purchase, lease, merger, consolidation or otherwise, of the business, stock or assets of any corporation,
partnership, limited liability company, firm or association.

16. Amendment and Termination.

(a) Both the Board and the Committee shall have the power, in its discretion, to amend, suspend or terminate the Plan at any time. No such
amendment shall, without approval of the stockholders of the Company, except as provided in Section 11 of the Plan, increase the number of
shares of Common Stock subject to the Plan or make any other change to the Plan that would require stockholder approval as a matter of
applicable law, stock exchange regulation or exemptive condition. In addition, subject to Section 11(a), no amendment to the Plan shall permit
repricing of any outstanding Incentive Awards, without stockholder approval.

(b) Both the Board and the Committee may, with the consent of a Participant, make such modifications in the terms and conditions of an
Incentive Award agreement as it deems advisable including accelerating the vesting and exercise dates of any outstanding Incentive Awards and
making grants of Common Stock equal to all outstanding credits of Dividend Equivalents; provided, however, no modifications of an Incentive
Award agreement shall permit repricing of any outstanding Incentive Awards without stockholder approval.

(¢) No amendment, suspension or termination of the Plan shall, without the consent of the Participant, alter, terminate, impair or adversely
affect any right or obligation under any Incentive Award previously granted under the Plan.

17. Effective Date of Plan and Duration of Plan.
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This 2000 Stock Incentive Plan shall become effective upon adoption by the Board and the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares at a
meeting of the stockholders of the Company. Unless previously terminated, the Plan shall terminate on April 28, 2008.
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HEALTH CARE PROPERTY INVESTORS, INC.

PROXY

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS MAY 7, 2003

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The undersigned, as a holder of Common Stock of Health Care Property Investors, Inc. (the Company ), hereby appoints Kenneth B. Roath and
Paul V. Colony as Proxies, with the full power of substitution, to represent and to vote as designated on this card all of the shares of Common
Stock of the Company which the undersigned is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 7, 2003 at 9:30 a.m.,
or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

Unless otherwise marked, this Proxy will be voted FOR the election to the Board of Directors of all nominees. FOR the approval of the
additional authorized shares under the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and FOR the ratification of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent auditors. If
any other business is presented at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the Proxy will be voted in accordance with the discretion of the Proxies
named above.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the nominees listed on the reverse side and FOR Proposals 2 and 3.

(IMPORTANT: PLEASE DATE AND SIGN HCPI s Proxy Statement and
THE PROXY ON REVERSE SIDE)
To change your address, please mark " HEALTH CARE PROPERTY

X Annual Report are available on
this box. INVESTORS, INC.

P.O. BOX 11284 HCPI s web site at:

NEW YORK, N.Y. 10203-0284 www.hcpi.com
To include any comments, please mark
this box.
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1.

(INSTRUCTIONS: To withhold authority to vote for any individual
nominee, mark the Exceptions box and write that nominee s name on the

PLEASE DATE, SIGN
AND
X
MAIL THIS PROXY IN
THE Votes must be indicated

ENCLOSED ENVELOPE.  (x) in Black or Blue ink.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS: Robert R. Fanning, Jr., Michael D.

Mckee, Harold M. Messmer, Jr. and James F. Flaherty II1.

FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN

FORall ,, WITHHOLD AUTHORITY ,, *EXCEPTIONS ,, 2. Approval of the amendment of .e .e
nominees to vote for all nominees listed and restatement to the
above Company s 2000 Stock
listed Incentive Plan
above

line provided below.)

*Exceptions:

. Ratification of Ernst & Young

.o oo X3

LLP as independent auditors
for the year ending December
31, 2003.

If you consent to use HCPI s Internet site to receive

all future annual reports and proxy statements,

please mark this box. If you consent to the above,

please type or print the electronic mail address

below where we can send notifications and .
electronic reports to you. We may elect to send

paper and/or electronic notifications to you. This

consent will remain in effect until you notify HCPI

by mail that you wish to resume mail delivery of

annual reports and proxy statements.

SCAN LINE

Please mark, date and sign as your name appears above. If

acting as executor, administrator, trustee, guardian, etc., you
should so indicate when signing. If the signer is a corporation,
please sign the full corporate name, by a duly authorized officer
and indicate the title of such officer. If shares are held jointly,
each stockholder named should sign. If you receive more than
one proxy card, please date and sign each card and return all

proxy cards in the enclosed envelope.
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Date  Share Owner sign here

Co- Owner sign here

66



